
CABINET MEMBER FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, PLANNING AND 
TRANSPORTATION 

 
Venue: Training Room, 3rd Floor, 

Bailey House,  
Rawmarsh Road, 
ROTHERHAM. 

Date: Monday, 16th November, 2009 

  Time: 10.30 a.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 
1. To determine if the following matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested in accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended March 
2006) to the Local Government Act 1972.  

  

 
2. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered later in the agenda as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Minutes of a meeting of the Health, Welfare and Safety Panel held on 16th 

October, 2009.  (copy attached) (Pages 1 - 2) 
  

 
4. Minutes of a meeting of the Members' Sustainable Development Advisory 

Group held on 30th October, 2009.  (copy attached) (Pages 3 - 8) 
  

 
5. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  

 
The following item is likely to be considered in the absence of the press and 
public as being exempt under Paragraph 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972 (Information in respect of which a claim to legal 
professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings) of Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 is requested, as this report 
deals with advice from Counsel in relation to judicial review proceedings in 
respect of the Rotherham Town Centre Interim Planning Statement (adopted 
13 October, 2008).  It is considered that the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption would outweigh the pubic interest in disclosing the information, as 
the proceedings could be prejudiced by disclosure of Counsel’s advice). 

 
6. Rotherham Town Centre IPS.  (report attached) (Pages 9 - 15) 

 
Ken MacDonald, Solicitor, to report. 
- to consider withdrawing the Rotherham Town Centre Interim Planning 
Statement adopted on 13 October, 2008. 

 

 



1 HEALTH, WELFARE AND SAFETY PANEL - 16/10/09 
 

 

HEALTH, WELFARE AND SAFETY PANEL 
FRIDAY, 16TH OCTOBER, 2009 

 
 
Present:-  Councillor R. S. Russell (in the Chair); Councillors Dodson, Nightingale, 
Swift and Wootton. and Mrs. S. D. Brook (NASUWT), Mr. J. W. Clay (ATL), Mrs. J. 
Adams (NUT), Mrs. C. Maleham (UNISON), Mr. K. Moore (UNITE), Mr. M. Eyre 
(GMB) and Mr. P. Waterworth (UNSION). 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors P. A. Russell, Sharman, 
Smith, Walker and Whelbourn and from Mr. C. Booth (GMB) and Mr. P. Scholey 
(UNISON).  
 
9. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 10TH JULY, 2009  

 
 Resolved:- That the minutes of the previous meeting of the Health, 

Welfare and Safety Panel, held on 10th July, 2009, be approved as a 
correct record for signature by the Chairman. 
 

10. HEALTH AND SAFETY BULLETIN  
 

 Consideration was given to the Health and Safety Bulletin, containing 
recent articles and reports of legal cases relating to health and safety.  
 
The following items were highlighted:- 
 
- matters of interest from the Health and Safety Executive (HSE asbestos 
campaign (ruling of Advertising Standards Authority); health and safety in 
schools); 
- myth of the Month (wearing school ties; use of ear plugs at music 
concerts; health and safety at village fetes); 
- recent Court Cases. 
 
Resolved:- That the Principal Health and Safety Officer distribute copies 
of the bulletin throughout the Authority and also publish the bulletin on the 
Council’s Intranet web site. 
 
 

11. HEALTH, WELFARE AND SAFETY - OVERVIEW OF INITIATIVES AND 
PROCEDURES  
 

 The Panel considered a report, presented by the Senior Health and 
Safety Officer, summarising issues dealt with by the Emergency and 
Safety Team since the last Panel meeting :- 
 
- asbestos in school buildings; 
 
- demolition of warehouse at Thrybergh; 
 
- paddling pool at Clifton Park and e coli; 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



HEALTH, WELFARE AND SAFETY PANEL - 16/10/09 2 
 

 
- delivery vehicles at Greasbrough Road depot; 
 
- Rinnai 556 model range heaters – safety notice. 
 
The Health, Welfare and Safety Panel received a copy of a briefing paper 
from the Senior Emergency and Safety Team meeting which had taken 
place on Thursday, 15th October, 2009. 
 
The Panel also welcomed the recent improvement works at Habershon 
House, Filey. 
 
Resolved:- That the information be noted. 
 

12. STATISTICS OF ACCIDENTS, INJURIES AND INCIDENTS OF 
VIOLENCE TO EMPLOYEES  
 

 The Senior Health and Safety Officer presented the graphs and statistics 
which illustrated the following details:- 
 
(i) Incident totals for Borough Council Employees - January 2008 to 
August 2009 – including a breakdown for Children and Young Peoples’ 
Services, Neighbourhood and Adult Services, Economic and 
Development Services, Corporate (including RBT) and Finance; 
 
(ii) Violence to Borough Council staff - January 2008 to August 2009; and 

 
(iii) Incidents involving members of the public, pupils/work 
placements/schemes and other – January 2008 to August 2009. 
 
Discussion took place on the possible under-reporting of incidents of 
violence to the Council’s employees, including teachers and non-teaching 
staff in schools. It was agreed that there should be further publicity and 
awareness-raising amongst employees, to ensure familiarity with the 
correct reporting procedures for such incidents. With specific regard to 
employees in schools, the Panel agreed that the Strategic Director of 
Children and Young People’s Services, or her appropriate representative, 
should attend the next meeting for further discussion about this subject. 
 
Resolved:- That the statistical information be noted. 
 
 

 

Page 2



1 MEMBERS SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY GROUP - 30/10/09 
 

MEMBERS SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY GROUP 
FRIDAY, 30TH OCTOBER, 2009 

 
Present:- Councillor Gosling (in the Chair); Councillors Austen, McNeely, Pickering 
and Walker. 
 

.  
together with:-  
  
Emma Bridge Policy Officer 
Stephen Dobson Research and Statistics Officer 
Wendy Foster Place Shaping Officer 
Oliver Hutchinson  
David Rhodes Corporate Environmental Manager 
Gordon Smith Quality and Design Co-ordinator 
David Wilde Local Agenda 21 Community Worker 
   

9. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 31ST JULY, 2009  
 

 Agreed:  That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 31st July, 2009, 
be accepted as a correct record. 
 

10. ANY MATTERS ARISING FROM THE PREVIOUS MINUTES  
 

 There were no matters arising from the previous minutes. 
 

11. PRESENTATION - "CARBON REDUCTION COMMITMENT - ENERGY 
EFFICIENCY SCHEME"  
 

 David Rhodes, Corporate Environmental Manager, gave a presentation in 
respect of the Carbon Reduction Commitment (Energy Efficiency 
Scheme) which was a mandatory carbon trading scheme covering 
approximately 5,000 public and private sector organisations.  The aim of 
the scheme, which was to commence in April 2010, was a European 
Union and national commitment to reduce carbon emissions. 
 
The presentation covered in detail:- 
 

- operation of the scheme 
- requirements and timeline for years 1, 2 and 3 
- The Carbon Trading Equation; including sealed bid auction;  

capping;  supply and demand; carbon trading gamesmanship 
- performance league table;  bonuses and penalties? 
- reimbursement payment 
- risks 
- next steps 

 
Members raised the following issues which were answered and clarified 
by the Corporate Environmental Manager:- 
 

Agenda Item 4Page 3



MEMBERS SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY GROUP - 30/10/09 2 
 

- Was the Council checking why it would not achieve target in 
Year 1? 

- What position were other local authorities in? 
- Was there any lee way in the scheme for former industrial areas 

or areas that were mostly countryside? 
- responsibility for schools and leisure centres 
- inclusion of Government departments 
- complexity of the scheme 
- energy generation schemes – grants e.g. for installation of 

photovoltaic panels 
 
Agreed:-  That the officer be thanked for the information, if complex, 
presentation. 
 

12. ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS REPORT  
 

 David Rhodes, Corporate Environmental Manager, presented the 
submitted report and highlighted the following:- 
 

- efforts to meet the 2% reduction target for NI 185 
- EMAS – awaiting certification sign-off 
- Display Energy Certificates:-  noting current situation, together 

with budget and resourcing issues 
- NI 185 and NI 194:- noting improved data collection 

arrangements now in place 
- Carbon Reduction Commitment – Energy Efficiency Scheme:  

noting progress of the Council’s preparation for involvement in 
this scheme, as detailed in the previous presentation 

 
Written answers were also provided to the Group’s previous questions in 
respect of:- 
 

(i) Are there any solar streetlights in Rotherham?  
 
It was reported that there were 6 solar powered street lights in the 
Borough in locations where there were no YEDL services and where 
the pay back period for the capital cost of purchase and installation 
was considered to be acceptable 
 
(ii) and Why do utility companies leave road markings in situ and 

could they not use graffiti wipes to clean paint off? 
 

It was reported that mostly the markings were water based and 
temporary.  On the rare occasions when marking had become 
permanent surface replacement had been enforced. 
 
Agreed:  That the contents of the report be noted. 

 
13. LOCAL ACTION 21 UPDATE  

 

Page 4



3 MEMBERS SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY GROUP - 30/10/09 
 

 David Wilde, Local Agenda 21 Community Worker, spoke to the submitted 
report highlighting the following:- 
 

- continuation of Specific Education for Sustainable Development 
projects 

- more informal awareness raising sessions 
- on going support to projects in relation to climate change and 

biodiversity 
- continuation of Green Check work with schools with funding 

from LABGI 
- approval of Green Check by Dearne Valley Eco-Vision Core 

Group 
- National recognition by DCSF of work on Sustainable Schools 
- Eco foot printing with schools and community groups 
- success of Global Footprints Trail at Herringthorpe and Wath 

CofE schools, and commencement at Coleridge 
- meeting with Building Schools for the Future and Extended 

Services re:  response to Carbon Management Strategy  
- good attendance at Sustainable Schools INSET day 

 
Further work included:- 
 

• progress implementation of audits/action plans at EMAS/Green Check 
schools and enlist further new schools 

• continued ESD activity as part of the DCSF Sustainable Schools 
initiative, including ongoing representation at Yorkshire and Humber 
Sustainable Schools Co-ordination Group (7 Dec) 

• progress closer working with Children and Young People’s Services, 
e.g. by Green Check/Sustainable Schools presentation to 
Headteachers 

• progress potential for Social Cohesion work in the context of LA21 
(and Sustainable Schools) 

• Green Check presentation to Sustainability Partnership on 11 Nov 

• REF meeting on 8 Dec to include Eco-Vision presentation 
 
Members present raised the following issues which were answered by the 
officer:- 
 

- availability of WREN funding/use of Landfill Tax credit 
- introduction of the sustainability ethos into schools 
- extending into communities and linking with other initiatives e.g. 

Grow Your Own and healthy eating 
- the need to spread good practice across the whole Council 

 
Resolved:- That the officer be thanked for his informative update. 
 

14. PRESENTATION - HCA SINGLE CONVERSATION.  (COPY 
ATTACHED)  
 

 Gordon Smith, Quality and Design Co-ordinator, gave a presentation in 

Page 5



MEMBERS SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY GROUP - 30/10/09 4 
 

respect of the Homes and Communities Agency’s “Single Conversation”.  
It was explained that this was a new agency bringing together many 
regeneration funding pots, aimed at closer working and alignment 
between the Homes and Communities Agency and the RDA Yorkshire 
Forward. 
 
The role of the HCA would be to be the key player in delivering housing 
and regeneration projects throughout the country. 
 
The key methodology for deciding the allocation of this funding was to be 
the Single Conversation with local authorities. 
 
The presentation further covered:- 
 

- how the Single Conservation will take place 
- the timetable:  noting Rotherham proposed to start the process 

January 2010 
- 2011/14 Local Investment Agreement 
- uncertainties of future funding 
- HCA regional profiles 
- the Council’s HMR/RHB/Growth and NAHP Track Record 

2008/11 totalling £49.7m with another £7.5m commitments 
going forward 

- developing Rotherham’s 2011-2014 programme 
- What are our spatial priorities? 
- What should be our priorities? 
- next steps 

 
Members present raised the following issues:- 
 

- the need for closer consultation with Planning Services 
- role of Elected Members 
- Council’s previous track record e.g. Canklow 
- empowering local communities 
- Evaluation of schemes by consulting the residents  
- criteria imposed on residential development and whether in the 

future these will be imposed on non-residential development 
- NI 187 – Fuel Poverty:  had there been any comments from the 

Utility companies? 
- possible future initiative to encourage householders to install 

energy efficiency measures 
 
Agreed: (1)   That the officer be thanked for the informative presentation. 
 
(2)  That Paul Maplethorpe, Affordable Warmth & Sustainable Energy Co-
ordinator, be invited to the next meeting to update the Group on future 
proposals to encourage householders to install energy efficiency 
measures. 
 

15. POLICY UPDATE. (COPY ATTACHED)  

Page 6



5 MEMBERS SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY GROUP - 30/10/09 
 

 
 Emma Bridge, Policy Officer, distributed a report and gave a verbal 

update in respect key issues from Government and what was happening 
in the region and sub-region, highlighting the following:- 
 

(i) Lofty Ambitions:-  the role of councils in reducing domestic CO2 
emissions 

 
It was pointed out that some Councils say that the multiplicity of funding 
streams has created ‘confusion for householders and duplication of effort’ 
when energy suppliers, and others, approach the same households with 
competing offers. 
 
It was also pointed out that Lofty Ambitions brands the Government’s £2.7 
billion a year winter fuel payments as a missed opportunity to both help 
keep people warm and to reduce CO2, and did not target fuel poverty. 
 

(ii) Procurement in Energy:  a member’s guide 
 
Noting that smarter procurement and better risk management could save 
Councils up to £140m each year. 
 

(iii) economic value in nature 
 
Reference to a major report published by Natural England showing that 
investment in the natural environment is critical to long term economic 
prosperity, and that natural services provide a highly cost effective 
solution to growing problems like flood and coastal defence, carbon 
emissions and the preservation of soil, water and air quality. 
 

(iv) CO2 Emissions Results Released 
 
Noting the latest breakdown of information for NI 186 (per capita reduction 
in CO2 emissions in the Local Authority area). 
 
(v)  Sub-regional development of the South Yorkshire Climate Change 
Leadership Academy 
 
Noting that the 1st event was scheduled for December 2009 and would 
focus on NI 185 (reducing CO2 emissions from local authority operations) 
 

(v) South Yorkshire joint working projects through the South 
Yorkshire  Climate Change Network:-  noting:- 

 

• South Yorkshire Climate Change Schools Co-ordinator 

• Building capacity and awareness around climate change in the 
voluntary and community sector 

• Sub-regional Local Climate Change Impacts Profile (a requirement 
of NI 188 Adapting to Climate Change) 

 

Page 7



MEMBERS SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY GROUP - 30/10/09 6 
 

(vi) Draft Environment and Climate Change Strategy 
 
Noting that consultation had ended and responses were currently being 
assessed.  The final document would be taken to Corporate Management 
Team, the Cabinet and the Local Strategic Partnership. 
 

(vii) Work of the Sustainability Partnership in funding the following 5 
projects:- 

 

• roll out of Green Check 

• provision of 4 aquaponics/wormery units to 4 secondary schools, 
who would then partner with a primary school to facilitate learning – 
linked to the ABLE project and the Dearne Eco Vision 

• 3 biodiversity projects, including pond restoration at the Muddies in 
Maltby 

 
Members present commented on:- 
 

- Greater London having the least CO2 emissions per person at 6 
million tonnes in 2007 (but noting that the ecological footprint 
for the South East was high) 

- involvement in the ABLE Project 
- how to address deprivation without increasing CO2 emissions 
- inclusion of Parish Councils in work to develop capacity and 

awareness with voluntary and community sector, and the South 
Yorkshire Parish Councils organisation 

 
16. DATE, TIME AND VENUE FOR NEXT MEETING  

 
 Agreed:  that the next meeting of this Group be held on FRIDAY, 8TH 

JANUARY, 2010 at 10.30 a.m. in Bailey House (room to be confirmed) 
 

 

Page 8



Agenda Item 6Page 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of a meeting of the Health, Welfare and Safety Panel held on 16th October, 2009.  (copy attached)
	4 Minutes of a meeting of the Members' Sustainable Development Advisory Group held on 30th October, 2009.  (copy attached)
	6 Rotherham Town Centre IPS.  (report attached)

